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Members INDEPENDENT AUDITORS, REPOIiT

To the of Apex Enterprises (India) Limitetl

Report on the autlit of the Financial St:rtenrents

Qualified Opinion

l. We have aLrdited the accompanying financial statements of Apex Enterprises (lnclia) Lirnited (,,the
Company"), whicli comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3l Marcl'r,2025, the Staterrent of profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Staternent of Changes in EqLrity apd the Staterrent of Cash
Florvs for the year then ended, and notes to financial staternents, including a sLrmlxary of significant
accounting policies and other expIanatory inforntatron.

Itl ot-lt'opinion and to tlie best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us except fbr
the ef,fects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaiti
financial statetrerlts give the information recluired bythe Companies Act,20l3 ("the Act") in the rna,,er
sc.} required and give a true and fair view in conforntitv with the lndian Accouutirrg Starrdarcls prcscribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Cornpanies (lndian AccoLrnting Stanclards) I{uies,20l5. as
anrended and other accoutrting principles generallv accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the
Cotnpa ny as at 3 1 March, 2025. its profit and othel conrplehens ive incorne, clralges in equ ity ard its cash
flows fbr the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

2" Attetttion is invited to Note no. 4 to the financial statements ri ith respect to the Cornpany's ipvestntert irr
unquoted equity shares of Rs. 21,64,22,410; dcbentur-es of Rs. 5,529: optio,ally firlly convertible
debelltLlres of Rs. 14, 13,00.000; non-curnulative optionallr corrr erlible prel'erence shares of Rs.
4.00,00,000; and cutuulative redeemable preference shares o1'Rs. -+.6-+.00.000. The Conrpany has not
obtained fair valrratiorl of these investments as at 3l March.20l5 as requirecl by Incl AS 109'iFinancial
IttstrLimetlts"- ln the absence of fair valuation reporl, we are trnablc to conrnrent on the carrl,ipg valLre of'
these illvesttneuts atrd the consequent impact thereof ou the Slatenrcnt ot'pro[.i1 apcl Loss.

\L'e conducted ottr audit of the financial statemenls in accolclance riilh the Standar.ds on ALrditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities Lrpclcr those Stapclards are firrther
dcscribed irl the ALrditor's Respotrsibilities fbr the ALrdit o1'thc Financial Statenrents sectio6 of or-rr repofi.
We are independerrt of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issuecl by the lnstitLrte of
Clrarlered Accourltants of India ("ICAI") togetl'rcr with the ethical requirerncpts that are relevant to .rrr
aLrdit of the financial statetnents under the relevant provisions o1'tlte Act and RLrles thereLrncler, ancl rve
ilave 1-ulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accoldance rvith these reqrri;emepts ard the ICAl,s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the aLrdit evidence wc have obtainecl is sLrfficient ancl appropriate to
provicJe a basis for our opinion on the financia[ stateluents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Apex Enterprises (India) Limited
Reporl on the Financial Statements for the period ended 3 1 }.darcl"t,2025

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to the Note no. 39 to the financial statements regarding dilLrtion of financial assets

in view of surrender of Non-Banking Financial Cornpany (NBFC) Certificate of Registration for negative
net owned fund. As mentioned in the notes, the Company is in the process of exploring the scope for
diversification and is hopeful forthe positive outcotne in the near future for the dilution of the financial
assets.

Or-rr opinion is not rnodified in respect of the above matter.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note no. 38 to the financial statements, which states that the net wor-th of the

Company is negative due to losses and the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 3l
March,2025. These events or conditions along with other rnatters as set forth in the aforesaid note,

indicate that there is a material unceftainty which casts significant doubt about the Cornpany's ability to

cor.rtinue as a'Going Concern'in foreseeable future. However, having regard to the financial supporl

from the lnanagelnent and firture plan for restructuring and/or lnerger, the Company has considered it
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a Going Concern Basis.

Our opiniorr is not modified in respect of the above rnatters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professior-ral judgrnent, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statemerrts of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion tlrereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

ln addition to the tnatters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have

determirred the nratters described below to be the key audit nratters to be cornrnunicated in our

Report:

i

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matters

Valuation of Quoted financial assets held at
fair value (Note No. a(i) as per the Financial
Statement)

Quoted Financial Assets are investment in quoted
equity instruments of other entities that have been

classified as fair valued through profit/loss
('FVTPL') based on the Company's business
rnodel of managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the

Principal Audit Proced ures :

Our audit inclr-rded, but was not limited to, the
following procedures:

. Evaluated the accor-rnting policy adopted by the
Company for its appropriateness in accordance
with applicable accounting starrdards, including
Ind AS 109.

4.

5.

I



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Apex Enterprises (India) Limited
Report on the Financial Statements for the period ended 37 March,2025

financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109
"Financial Instruments". Fufther, the Company
has designated investments in mutual funds and
for the pllrpose of determining fair value of the
sarne, the sliare priceNAV as at year-end of such
investments has been considered by the
rnanagernent.
Investments in quoted equity instruments was

considered to be one of the areas whicli required

significant auditor attention aud was one of the

rnatters of nrost significance in the financial
staternents considering the nraterial ity of total
value of investments to the fi nancial statements.

and hence has been identified as a key audit
nlatter for the current year's audit.

. lnspected soLlrce docr,rrnents slrch as Statement
of holdings frorn depository held in the name of
the Company, to coufirnt existence and
riglrts of the Corrpany to such investmeltt balance
as disclosed to be or-rtstanding as at 3lMarch,
2025.

. For investlnent in listed entities, perfornted
independent price check frorl relevant stocl<

exchange used by Conrpany's tnanagenleltt to fair
value their investr.nents recognised at FVTPL as

per Ind AS 109 "Financial lnstruments".

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Rcport Thereon

6. The Contpany's Board of Directors is responsible for the other inforrnation. l'he other infornration
cotnprises the inforrnation included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

OLrr opinion on tlte financial statements does not cover the other iul'ormation and we do not express any
forrn of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other iuforrnation
and, in doing so, consider whether tlie other infonnation is materially inconsistent with the lrnancial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our aLrdit or othertvise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material rnisstateurent of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with GovernAnce for the Financial Statements

1 . The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the rratters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial slatements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial perfonnance and other comprehensive income, changes in eqLrity and cash flows of the
Corlpany in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inclLrding the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read rvith the relevant rules issr-red there

u nd er.

-fccou



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Apex Enterprises (India) Lirnited
Reporl on the Financial Staternents for the period ended 31 March,2025

This responsibility also includes rnaintenance of adequate acconnting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frar"rds

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accor-rnting policies; rnaking judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implernentation and rnaintenauce of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensr.rrit.rg the accLrracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finarrcial statements that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managernent is responsible for assessing the Corlpany's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerlt and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8. OLrr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboLrt whether the financial statentents as a whole are

free front material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an ar-tditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable asslrrance is a high level of assurance, bLrt is not a guarantee that art

audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material

nrisstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they coLrld reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs), we exercise professional jLrdgrnent

and maintain professional skepticism tliroughoLrt tlre audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statenrents, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform ar-rdit procedures resporrsive to those risl<s, atrd obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting frorn frar.rd is higher than for one resulting lrorn

error, as fraud rnay involve collusior.r, forgery, intentional on.rissiorrs, Irisrept'esentations, or the

override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design aLrdit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial control with reference to fiuancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

ofsuch controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasolrableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by mattagetnetlt.

CHARTERED

\CCOUNTANTS
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To the Members of Apex Enterprises (India) Limite
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' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of acconnting
and, based on the aLrdit evidence obtained, whether a material unceftainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to corrtinue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, \\/e are requirecl to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial staternents or, if sr-rclr

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, futr-tre events or conditions
lllay cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concent as disclosed in paragraph 4 of
our Reporl.

' Evaluate the overall presentatior-r, structure and content of the finaucial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the Lrnderlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fail presentation.

We cotnlnttnicate witli those charged with governauce regarding, arnong other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inclr-rding any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identif during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement tlrat we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to cornmunicate with them all relationships ancl other
tnatters that rnay reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
sa1'eguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9" As required by tlie Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Or<ler"), issr-red by the Central
Governtnentoflndiainterrnsofsub-section(ll)ofsection l43oftheCompaniesAct,20l3,wegivein
'the Annexure-A, a statement on the rnatters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

10.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

(a) We have sought and obtained, except for the nratter described in the "Basis for Qualifiecl Opinion"
sectiot.t, all tlie inforrration and explanations which to the best of oLrr l<nowledge and bel ief were
necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) Except for the effects/possible effects of the rnatter described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion"
section, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) Except for the matter described in the "Basis for QLralified Opinion" sectior.r, the Balance Sheet,
the Staternent of Profit and Loss (inclLrding other con'rpreherrsive income), the Staternent of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreemeut
with the books of account.
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To the Members of Apex Enterprises (India) Lirnited
Report on the Financial Statements roi tre period ended 3l March, 2025

(d) In our opirliort, except for the effects/possible effects of the rnatter describecl in the ,.Basis for
Qualified Opinion" section, the aforesaid financial staterrents cornply with the Irrdian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules issuecl thereunder;

(e) Ottr observations or colnmettts described in the "Basis for QLralified Opi,ion,, section do not have
any adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

(0 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3l March 2025 takerr
on record by the Board of Directors, r.lone of the directors is clisqLralified as on 3l March.2025
frorn being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(g) The qualification relating to the maintenauce of accounts and other lnatters connected therewith
are as stated in the "Basis for eualified Opinion,, section;

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our sepal-ate Ileport i1
An,exure -B wherein we have expressecr a quarified opinion.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be includecl in the Auditor's Report in accordarce with RLrle
1l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ol our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

ll

The Company does not have any pending litigations r,vhich may have any impact on its
financialposition in its financial statements.

The Company does nothave any long-tenr.r contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable Iosses; and

There were no alnounts which were required to be transferrecl to the Lrvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loarred or invested (either fronr borrowecl fLrnds or share premium or
any other sources or kir-rd of funds) by the Company to or in any other persol(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understandipg, whetlrer
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermecliary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any rranner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Cornpany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer note 4l(vi)(A)) of the flnancial
staternents.

(b) The management has also represented to us, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that no
funds have been received by the Compauy fron any person(s) or entity(ies), ilcludipg
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or inclirectly, lend to or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding pafiy

lv.

lll
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("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the lil<e on behalf of the

Ultirnate Beneficiaries (Refer note 4l (viXB)) of the financial statenrents.

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (i) and (ii) of Rule (e) as provided Lrnder (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed / paid any dividend for the year ended

31 March, 2025,hence, rro compliance of Section 123 of the Act was uecessary.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Corrpany has used accounting
software for rraintaining its books of account for the financial year 3l March,2025 which has a

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the soltware's. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not colne across any instance of the audit trail feature being tarnpered with.
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Conrpany as per the statr-rtory reqrrirenrents
for record retention.

1l . Witl-r respect to tlie matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordarrce with the requirernents of
Section 197(16) of the Act:
In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanation given to us, the retnuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(16)
of tl-re Companies Act, 201 3.

ForDKChhajer&Co
C hcrrt er ed Ac countants

Firm Registration No. 304138E

Membership No. 017483

UDIN: LE ot14E3gl''t1 bl tR 4o'1

Place: Kolkata
Date: 1 g.ri1 fv\uq, 2c,2S-)

rAFXfi-Il

Partner



Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 under 'Repoft on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
reporl to the rnembers of Apex Enterprises (India) Ltd. on the Financial statements for tlre vear encled 3l
March,2025.

(a) (A) The Cornpany has maintained proper records showing firll particLrlars, including quantitative
details and situation of Properly, Plant & Equiprrent.

(B) The Company does not have intangible assets as at 3 I March, 2025. Tlrerefore, the provisiops
of Clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exanrinatiol
of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipnrent of the Cornpany have beel
physically verified by the managerxent at reasonable intervals and no material discrepencies
have been noticed on such verification.

According to the infonnation and explanations given to us ancl on the basis of our exarni,atio,
of the records of the Company, the Cornpany does not holcl any iurrnovable proper-ties as at 3l
March, 2025. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Cornpany.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and EqLriprlrent clLrring the year.The Cornpapy
does not liold any intangible assets as at 31 Marcl r, 2025. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ixd) of the Order are not applicable to the Cornpany.

(e) According to the inforrnation and explanations grven to Lrs. no proceedings have beel ipitiatecl on
or are pending against the Cornpany for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benarni Property Transactions Act, I 988 (as amended in 201 6) (for-rrrerly the Benam i

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our cornmenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details i1
its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) As at 31 March, 2025 the Cornpany does not have any physical inventories. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Conrpanv.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exan-rination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any worl<ing capital linrits in
excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institLrtions o1 the basis of
security of current assets at any point of tirne of the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of or-rr examination of
the records of the Company during the year, the Cornpany has not provided any guarautee or
security or granted any loans or advatrces in the nature of loans, secnr-ed or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnersliip or any other parties dLrring the year. The Corrparry
has made investtnent in other parties during the year. Fulther, the Company has not made

(b)

(c)

I|l
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Refered to in paragraph g under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements, section of our
repoft to the members of Apex Enterprises (India) Ltd. on tlie Financial statements for the year ended 31
Marcll,2025.

investment in cornpanies, firtns and lirnited liability parlnership. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a),(c),(d),(e ),(0 of the order are not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion, the investments made during the year by the Cornpany are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has neither granted any loans, nor provided guarantees or
securities which require compliance with the provisions of Section 1 85 of the Act. [n respect of
the loans and investments made by the Company, the provisious of Section I 86 of the Ait have
been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits withir-r
the meaning of Sections 73 to 16 or auy provisions of the Act and the Ru les framed there nnder to
the extent notified. Therefore, the provisions of clause(v) is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Governmettt has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under snb-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried oLrt by the Compa.y. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order are not applicable to the cornpany.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Conrpany is generally regular in depositing the undispLrted
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, Enrployee's state inssrapce,
Income tax, Sales-Tax, Sewice Tax, Duty of custorns, Duty of Excise, Valr-re added Taxes, cess
and other statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate aLrthorities. There wel.e r1o LrpdispLrtecl
atnounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues in arrears as at 3 I March. 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they becarre payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us apd on the basis of,oLrr exarnination of
the records of the Cornpany, there are no dues in respect of statutory dues referred to in (a) above,
which have not been deposited on account ofany dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecordecl income
that were surrendered or disclosed as incorne in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 , (43 of J 96 I ) duri ng the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and o1 the basis of our exarninatio,
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaLrlted in repaynrent of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender dLrring tlre year.

ix.
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Referred to in paragraph 9 under'Report on Other Legal and RegLrlatory Requirements' sectiolt of our
report to the members of Apex Enterprises (India) Ltd. on the Financial statenrents for the year ended 31

March,2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exanrination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilfirl defaLrlter by ar-ry

bank or financial institution or govenrnent or government authority.

Lt our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to ns, the Company

has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term

loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Therefore, the provisions of Clatrse

3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Cornpany.

According to the information and explanations given to r-rs and ott the basis of examination of
records of the ConTpany, the Company has not raised any firnds on shoft-terrn basis. Therefore,

the provisions of Clause 3(ixXd) of the Order are not applicable to the Conrpany.

During the year ended 3l March, 2025,the Company did not have any subsidiaries, associates

or joint ventures as defined under the Act. Therefore, the provisions of ClaLrse 3(ix)(e) of the

Order is not applicable to the Compatry.

Dr-rring the year ended 31 March,2025. the Conrpanr did not have any sLrbsidiaries, associates

or joint ventures as defined under the Act. Therefore. the provisions of Clause 3(ix)(1) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised moneys by lvay of initial pLrblic offer or firrther pLrblic offer

(including debt instrurner-rts) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of ClaLrse 3(x)(a) of the

Order are not applicable to the Conrpany.

The Company has not made any preferential allotrnent or private placement of shares or fully
or parlially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ottr exanrinatiot.t

of the records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted aLrditing

practices in India, lve have neither corrre across any instance of frar-rcl by the Company or on

the Cornpany, noticed or repofted during the year, nor have we beerl informed of any such case

by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exatlinatiotr

of the records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted aLrditing

practices in India, a report r"rnder Section 143(12) of the Act, ir Fornr ADT-4, as plescribed

under Rule 13 of Companies (ALrdit and Auditors) RLrles,2014 was not reqLrired to be filed

with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this repoft. Therefore, the

provisions of Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order are trot applicable to the Corrpany.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(0

(a)x.

(b)

(a)xl

(b)
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 under'Report on Other Legal and RegLrlatory Requirements' sectiot't of our

repoft to the members of Apex Enterprises (India) Ltd. on the Financial statements for the yeal ended 3 1

March,2025.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were lto u'histle blower

complaints received during the year by the Company.

As the Company is not aNidhi Cornpany and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the

provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the conrpany.

Iu our opinion and according to the infomation and explanations given to us, the transactiot.ls

with related parlies are in compliance with section s lJl and I BB of tlre Act, where applicable, arrd

the details of the related pafty transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) |t our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanation given to us, the Cornpany

has an internal audit system which comrrlensurate with the size altd ttature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion and according to the inforrnation and explattatiorts given to rts, the Corrpany has

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with them.

Therefore, reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under Clause

3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Banl< of

India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of ClaLrse 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(b) Accordirrg to the information and explanations gir,en to us. as ilrdicated irl the Note no. 39 to

the financial statements, the Company has surrendered its NBFC Certificate in the year 2006

and is in the process for exploring the scope for diversificatiorr of bLtsirress. Till such tine the

Cornpany is conducting Nor -Barrking Financial activities'

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Cornpany is not a Core

Investment Company ('CIC ') as defined urrder the Regulations rnade by the Reserve Bank of

I1dia. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the

Cornpany.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us dr-rring the coLtrse of our audit,

the Group (as per the provisions of the Core hrvestlnent Companies (Reserve Banl<)

Directions, 2016) does not have any ClC.

xv1.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. BBl,447 in the current filtattcial year however, it

had not incurred cash loss in the immediately preceding f-inancial year.

xlv.



Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Refened to in paragraph 9 under'Repoft on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the members of Apex Enterprises (India) Ltd. on the Financial statements for the year ended 31
March,2025.

xvl[.

xlx.

There has not been any resignation of the Statutory ALrditors during the year ancl therefore,
Clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

and payment of financial liabilities, other inforrnation accorrpanying the financial statenrents
and our knowledge of the management and its plans and based on our exanrination of the
evidence supporling the assumptions, read with Note No:38 in the Financial Staterrent we
believe that material uncertainty exists as on the date of this aLrdit repoft regarding the
Company's ability to meet its liabilities existing as at the date of balance sheet. We flrther
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the audit report. We firrther draw
attention to paragraph 'Material Uncertainty in relation to Going Concern' section of our
independent auditor's report of even date, on the financial statenrents of the Cornpany,
regarding the applicability of the going concenr assLrntptrons,

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence, the
Company is not required to spend on projects as reqLrired Lrnder Section 135 (5) of the Act.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xr) (a) and (b) of the Ordel is not applicable.

The repofting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of aLrdit of these
fiinancial statements. Therefore, no cornnreut in lespect of the said Clause has been included in
this report.

For D"K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Finn Registration No. 304l3BE

\

,larx,,,.*tm#-
Parlner
Membership No. 017483

UDIN: 2go I I 4 t3 Br._{ }L/l Cq

Place: I(olkata
Date: ti.rh *4u*J ,2ilLs-

xxl



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial

(i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143

controls with reference to the Financial Statements under clause

of the Companies Act' 2013

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements of Apex

Errterprises (lndia) Lirnited ("the company") as at 31 March,2025 in corrjr-rnction 'vith 
our audit of the

financial statentents of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management,sResponsibilityforlnternalFinancialControls

The Company,s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal firlancial controls

based on the internal c"ontrol with reference to financial statements criteria established by the company

considering the essential components of internal con

Finarrcial Controls over Financial Reporling issued

(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,

financial controls that were operating effectively

business, including adherence to Company's polici

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and co

preparation of reliable financial informatiott, as t'equi

Auditor's ResPonsibilitY

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial cotttrols \vith reference to

financial statements based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with thc Guidance Note on

Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Fina e Standards on

ALrditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be t to the extent

applicable to an audit of internal financial ernal financial

controls and botli issued by the ICAI. Those rat we cornply

with ethical requirements and plan and perfornr th about whether

adequate internal filancial conlrols over financial reporting was established and maintained and if sLrch

controls operated effectively in all material respects'

OLrr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evideuce about the adeqrracy of the internal

financial cortrols system or"i fi,rur"ial system and their operating effectiveness. or-rr aLrdit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting iucluded obtaining an unclerstanding of internal financial

controls over financial statements, assessi-ng the risk that a material weahness exists and testing and

evaluati,g the design and operating effectiveness of Iuternal control based on the assessed risl<' 'l-he

p.ocedu.Js selected depend on the iuditor's judgrnent, including tlre assessn.tent of the risl<s of matelial

misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraltd or errot"

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sLrfflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our ar,dit opinion on the cornpany's internal financial controls systenr u ith referetlce to these financial

statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial statenrents is a proceis designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the pleparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance lvith generally accepted accounting principles. A
Cotrpany's internal financial control over financial statements inclr.rdes those policies and procedures
that:-

(1) pertain to the maintenauce of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perrnit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Cornpany are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of rnanagernent and directols of the Cornpany; and (3)
plovide reasonable assurance regardiug prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitior.r, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with ref,erence to financial statenrents,

including the possibility of collusion or improper managelxent, override of controls, rnaterial

rnisstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the Internal Financial Controls witli reference to financial statements to fiLtLrre periods are subject to the

risk that the Internal Financial Controls with respect to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance rvith the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the infonnation and explanation given to us, the following rnaterial weakness has been
identified as at 3 I March, 2025:

Tl-re Company's internal financial control regarding fair valuation of its investment as required by Ind AS
109 "Financial Instruments" ir.t respectof unquoted equity shares, debcntures, optionally firlly Convertible
debentures, non-cumulative optionally convertible preference share and curnulative redeemable
preference share were not operating effectively as on 3l March,2025, which woLrld result in not
recogrrizing fair value gain/loss appropriately in these financial statements of the Company.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency or a combinatiotr of deficiencies in internal financial control over
financial reporling, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstaterrent of a Cornpany's
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opitriorr, the Company has, in all material respects an adequate internal financial controls system
r.vith reference to financial statements and sLrch internal finar-rcial controls rvith respect to financial
statetnents were operating effectively as at 31 March,2025,based on the intemal control with respect to
financial statetnents criteria established by the Cornpany considering the essential components of irrternal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial



Reporling issued by the L-rstitute of Chartered Accountants of India a1d except for the possible effects of
material weakuess described above on the achievement of the objectives of the controI criteria, the
intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were
operating effectively as of 3 I March,2025.

We also have audited in accordance with the Standard on Auditing issLred by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountatrt of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of Apex
Enterprises (lndia) Lirrited which comprise Balance sheet as at 31 March ,2025, and the related statement
of Profit and Loss and statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, arrcl sulnmary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory infonnation. These material weal<nesses were considered in determining
the trature, tirning and extent of audittest applied in our audit of the 3l March, 2025 financial statements
of Apex Enterprises (India) Limited and the report does not affect our repoft dated 15tr, May,2025 which
express a qualified opinion on those financial statements.

For I). K.Chhajer& Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 304138E

##.rr,w;r,r#"
Partner

Membership No. 017483

UDIN: 25o t 1 48\ tl$^t L'1LR4

Place: Kolkata
Date: l(ttr W\ctu.,1 t 20'Lr'



Apex Enterprises (lndia) Limited

ctN - 151109W81995P1C068542

Balance Sheet as at March 37,2025

amount in hundred two declmals, unless otherwlse

Particulars Notes

As at
March 31,2025

Amount

As at

March 31, 2024

Amount

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, plant and equiPment

(b) Financial Assets

(i) lnvestments
(c) Deferred Tax Asset

(d) Other Non-Current Assets

Current assets

(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents

(iii) Cash Balances (other than cash & cash equivalents)

(b)

(c)

(iv) Loans and Advances

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other current assets

Total Assets

EqUIY AND LIABILITIES

EqUlTY

Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) other Equity

Total Equity

UABIL]TIES

Non-current Llabilitles

(a) Flnancial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Long-TermProvisions
(c) DeferredTax liabilities

Current Liablllties
(a) FinancialLiabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii)'Other Financlal Liabllities

(b) Other current Liabilities

Total tiablllties
Total Equity and Llabllities

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

11

72

13

t4

15

16

5

I

17

18

776,63

56s299s.51

7632.OO

970.24

51s8856.54

6t496.11
76J2.00

56514(N.14

2462.30

1150.00

521392.85

41329.18

95.00

5228964.95

480.00

1585.49

1150.00

497203.58

41329.09

95.00

s66429.33 s41844.16

6227813.47 5770809.11

882040.00
(28983585.61

882040.00
(29303489.11)

(28101645.511

2417s860.00
3500.10

103814.18

l2842tm9.Ltl

24175860.00

3053.81

24283L74.28

205242.80

475.80

9840586.20

24L78923.8L

t71440.Lt
472.43

984t421.87

10046304.80

34329479,O8

10013334.41

14192258,22

5227833.47 5770809.11

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Financial Statements

1&2
3to41

As per our Report attached of even date

For D.K.Chhaier & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

lCAl Firm Registration No.304138E

Portnet

Membership No.017483

Place: Kolkata

Date I l5lo5l2025

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sarkar)

,.tcu-,n Ltl-r*At
(Neelam Khator)

Company Secretary

PAN. AFQPLOOg2J. AZHPSO5TlL I
I
il.
\/_



Apex Enterprises (lndia) Limited
clN - 151109W8199sPrC06854
Statement of Profit and toss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Financial Statements
1&2

3to41

The notes referred to above form an integral part ofthe financial statements

amount in hunlired upto two decimals, unless otherwise

Particulars Notes

For the year ended
March 31,2025

Amount

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Amount

lncome

Other lncome
Provision for Doubt Debts written back

Gain on lnvestment due to change of FMV

Total lncome

Expenses

Loss from Partnership Firm

Share Forfit

Loss on lnvestment due to change of FMV

Loss on Permanent diminution in value of lnvestment
Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expenses

Current tax
Tax adjustment for earlier years

Deferred tax
Total tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
A, (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
profit or loss

B. (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
loss

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive lncome for the year (V + Vl)

Basic and diluted Earnings per equity share of face
value of 110/- each (in INR)

il.

ilt.

tv.

V.

vt.

v[.

19

20

20

2l
22

3

23

24

3t739.32

494L2t.93

317385.54

525861.25 317385.54

11181.34

12050.59

193.61

17327.76

551703.65

10045.31

22347.3t

366.00
1168s.87

40747.40 695148.14

485113.85

165310.35

(378762.601

968S.16

1ar220.671

165310.35 (71535.51:

319803.50 1307227,O9';

319803.s0 (307227.09)

3.63 (3.48)

As per our Report attached of even date
For D.K.Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

lCAl Firm Registration No.304138E

Portner

Membership No.017483

Place : Kolkata
Date z 1510512O25

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

DrN - 000207s5

Sarkar)

(Subrata Pal)

Director
DtN - 00016151

il e*,1. r.rt'"r. i<)' th't
(Neelam Khator)

Company Secretary

PAN - AFQPLOOg2J

J-rr"k*,;nrr*J' H6ek9*V^-
. AzHPSO571L

/il.



ra

Apex Enterprises (lndial timited
crN - 151109W81995PrC068542
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3L, ZOZ'

As per our Report attached of even date
For D.K,Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts
lCAl Firm Registration No.304138E

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directo6

(

Director

DrN - 000207ss

(Subrata Pal)

Director

DtN - 00015151

$oIeL
I

Company Secretary
PAN . AFQPLM92J

amount ln

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Amount

For the year ended
March 3t 2024

Amount

A. Cash Flow from Operatint Activltles
Profit / (Loss) before tax for the period
Adjustments for :

Oepreciation and amortisation
lnterest lncome
Dividend lncome
Gain on Sale of lnvestment
Gain on lnvestment due to change of FMV

Loss on lnvestment due to change of FMV
Loss on Parmanent Diminution in value of lnvestment
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Doubtful Debts wrltten back
(Profi t)/Loss from Partnership Firm

Share Forfeiture

OperatinS Profit/ (Loss) before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(lncrease) in trade receivable
Decrease/(lncrease) in Short Term loans and advances
Decrease/(lncrease) in Other Current Assets

Decrease/(lncrease) in Current Tax Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash from / (used in) Operatint Activities

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities
Ad.iustment in Defrered Tax Assets

lnterest received

Dividend received

Capital Expenditure on Property, Pland & Equipments
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Pland & Equipments
Purchase of Long Term lnvestments
Proceeds from Sale of LongTerm lnvestment

Net Cash from / (used in) lnvesting Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceed from Long Term Borrowing
Repayment of Long Term Borrowing

Net Cash from / (used inI Financing Activities
Net increase / (decrease) ln cash and cash equlvalent (A + E + C)

Cash and cash equlvalents
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(a) Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balance
with banks and deposits with banks.

ln Current Accounts
Other bank balances

Cheque in Hand

Cash on Hand

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2025

(b) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the
'lndirect Method' as set out in the lndian Accounting Standard on
'Statement of Cash Flows (tnd AS-7)' issued by The tnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia.

485113.85

193.51

(284t2.7s\
(810.17)

(494121.93)

436.29

1378762.60"

365.00
(33501.61)

(807.63)

(2804e2.30)

551703.55

542.87

(37601.10

480.00

124189.27"

(0.0s1

3.37
(83s.57)

(409s1.58)

54t8r'.77
702247.76

4084.03

(1151.70)

(13s979.s8)

19685-161

|162142.761 127261.56)

2Ut2.7s
gLO.t7

17.ul

33601.51

807.63

(s.s0)

290100.00

29215.88 324503.74

117845.53
IAAAD AAI

99824.92

l1q8qr I csl

33802.69 (299089.031

875.81

875,81
1546-4q

(1845.8s1

(1846.8s)

3433.34
2462.30 1586.49

1939.23

523.07

105s.23

\2126
2462.t0 1585.49

these FinancialThe

Poftner

Membership No.017483

Place: Xolkata

Dare I L5lO5l2O23



!i

d
.J(
J

1 H dsEa
/-=2r-> E * I*lE

EEE lt*r
eg= -jg5=

CN6hJOe+
ENE<
gt=

o
o
i5
o
E
oo
d
o

ooNoEA
6 L;5a96
'=U''o9,2!ti5 o

6
N
o6

.Nooz g{
oo6
E =-oE 9o-

Lo-dooCco.,EE H*d= Ed

rg 2ouo 9
E"o g
a
E'6
g
6
c

o

o
t
Go
ig p**

^o.=E
u6EuEFAE5g .E i 5otr..io!+q ; H mIE € i -iEij o EciXeoo P iEu: oEt B toEE.-iE ; gbB;
{q F EESB
;: E i6*:qo X :xSt
E3 E Edti.c !i O Es 67a> f te6p

E
oo

E
aoo

oU
@

ln
o
EEeg
ss
-- .EHI
E#Eo
C6o8
35
lo'

#E
oo

8 $;E2 t^'= 3

EHqi
=ll 

6E
:?6 0, 0g8 Hi
oicot=
.=>Gtr

sg;E
EEEE
X r (Uo
8.=Ei
<r.J6=

I
IU
o

o
oF

8'88
NNNIONN
NN
IONN
600
oom
6v

o
@

$o
(,r

oo4u!
oo6@oo

@

6
6
o
6
Q
N

g
.T

.Eo
##E
9qc

E-oU

2
c
I

!
E
G

o
?o
o4

d
.sc
oU
Eo
.Eo
oc

Nooooo
.iNN
@NN
NNN
@NNooo
666
6v

t;
IE
lo
l!

loolau_1
lm6
loo
t66166

I
I

@
6o(6

ooo

E9gE
b39E

Es
Eo
o0>Es

E
.9ECcc
_E$OE
E

oEoE.= ?5Eg900,3Ec

_.E "gEt
:r.€ &

c

EE'=o
5p

sa
.9
tor

= EBI :t
o ,Yo5 gt
uEetr o!

R'EHEEqEasi
5 P: H E
=E o: o

"i -1b 
-H. 

EH{.9 E F

Ht;E*
ESSEE

EE
; Pco eti "E:f, gi
MEI

ErPE
E iE Io -- 2'7.EEES3:Ef
E-E ? F
.9-uJ
E,E E=
E..eH3

h

c

u
o

=o
o0c
!o

!

C

o
E

oooooo
dcid
oooNNNo@@o66

o

o
o

o
oz

888
ooo
NNN
@@6
o60

EE
atoU
o
qE
As>?
.E .E

ro

IE

lq

,i
Ec
o
!o!
'tr

!
l

!'
o)
,9
E
G
o

FnRR
Eoc4or P I
E a> >
E{gs

IOOO

q

o

d'\ ai ):'

rt
o
;
u
o

=o
o
c



APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31St MARCH, 2025

l. Corporate lnformation
Apex Enterprises (lndia) Limited ("the Company") is a cornpany incorporated on 20'r' February 1995.

The company is engaged in the Investrnents in Shares & Securities. However, the company is in the

process of diverling of business to non-financial activities. The shares of the company are listed on

Calcutta Stock Exchange.

The Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31 March,2025 were approved for issue

in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 15 May ,2025.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards

(Ind AS) notified under section 133 read with the Cornpanies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

("the Act"). The Company prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with accounting

standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 20 13, read together with

paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Dividend income (including from lnvestrnents tneasured at

Company's right to receive the payrnent is established. This is
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
dividend can be tneasured reliably.

(i) Financial Asse(s -

All hnancial assets are recognised initially
recorded at fair value through profit or

Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on

rnethod of accounting, except for cerlain financial
value/ amoftised cost. (Refer note 2.3 below).

historical cost convention and on an accrual

assets and liabilities that are rreasured at fair

FVTPL) is recognised when the

established when it is probable that
to the entity and the arnor-lnt of the

at fair value plus, in the case offinancial assets not

loss, transaction costs that are attribr"rtable to the

b.

c. Functional Currency and Presentation Currency
The financial staternents are presented in Indian Rupees (lNR), which is also its lunctional

currency.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. Recognition of lnterest income
Interest income for all financial instrurnents measured

is recognised using the contractual interest rate.

2.2. Recognition of Dividend Incomes

at fair value thror-rgh profit or loss (FVTPL)

2.3 Financial lnstruments
A financial instrurnent is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial

liability or equity instrutnent of another entity. Financial Asset and financial Iiabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue

of financial asset and financial liabilities (Other than financial asset and financial liabilities at fair

value through the statement of profit and [oss) are added or deducted lrom the fair valLre of the

financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs

directly attributable to the acquisition offinancial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

the staternent of profit and loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

acquisition of the financial asset.



APEX ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I st MARCH,2O}I

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Financial Asset at Amortised Cost
o Debt Instrument at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCD
o Debt Instrument at Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
. Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Equity Instruments measured at FVTPL: For all equity instrument in other than held for trading, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in Profit and Loss subsequent changes in the
fair value. Equity instruments which are also held for trading are classified as FVTPL. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

In case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTPL, then all fair value changes
on the instrument are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. Dividends on investments are
credited to profit or loss.

The company has designated its investment in equity instruments as FVTPL category.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS - 109 requires expected credit losses (ECL) to be measured
through a loss allowance. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of
Ind-AS l15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", if they do not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, l2-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on l2-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The l2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls) discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 I st MARCH,2OZI

loss. For financial assets measured as at amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iD FinancialLiabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability in its balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, -are recognized
in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate
Interest) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes
cash on hand, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that arc
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at bank, and bank overdraft which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

2.5. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Properly, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, installation or construction (net

of taxes and other recoverable, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any, except freehold land which is carried at cost

cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including inward freight,
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the

to working condition and location for its intended use. Stores and spare parts are capitalised

{/
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when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. The corresponding old spares are
decapitalised on such date with consequent impact in the statement of profit & loss.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise,
expenditure towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and
depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

2.6. Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value method (WDV)
to write down their residual values over their estimated useful life specified in Schedule II of the
Companies Act,20l3.
Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant and equipment, net of their residual
values, over their useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 .

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed during each financialyear and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.In
respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

2.7. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on internal/external factors. lf any such indication exists, then an impairment
review is undertaken and an impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use. ln
case, where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual non-financial
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the smallest cash generating unit to
which the non-financial asset belongs.

lmpairment loss recognised in prior accounting period(s) is reversed when there is an indication
that the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. However, the carrying
value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by
charging usual depreciation, if there was no impairment. Post impairment, depreciation is

provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life

2.8. Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax and includes any adjustments
related to past periods in current and/or deferred tax adjustments that may become necessary due to
certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. Tax is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in Equity or Other
Comprehensive Income.

2.8.1 Current Tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
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Current tax relating to the items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability
on a net basis.

2.8.2Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor
taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Current and defened tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same
relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively.

Minimum Altemate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT
credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

2.9. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and asset
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a
result of a past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle such
an obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably. If the effect of the time value of money is

using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.
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Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occulrenc ce of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the company or on that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements
when the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is more.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

2.10. Earnings per Share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding auiing the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all
dilutive potential equity sha res.

2.1 1. Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is a_djusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrali or accruals of past or fufure cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, invesiing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

2.12. USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AI\ID ADJUSTMENT
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies

ts, liabilities, ' losures of ctntingent
the financial operations during the
ese estimates t's best knowledge of
results could

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periodi
affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed in the
paragraphs that follow.

(, Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic factors
(such as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of ppE at the end of each
changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

reporting date and any
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The Company also reviews its properfy, plant and equipment for possible impairment ifthere
are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets may
not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factori
leading to significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes
in regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

(ii) Contingencies and Commitments
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation
and other claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable
and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in
the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome ofthe legal proceedings, the
Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's
financial position or profitability.

(iii) Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes
Some ofthe Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available.

(iv) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Corried Forward Tax Losses and Unused Tax
Credit :,,:ir_
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessrnent ofthe
probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal
or economic limits.
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to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025
R amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

4 Investment

Non-Current Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Other Body Corporate - Fully paid-up Equity Shares

Face Value

Jechnologies Ltd

share

l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
10

t0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0

5

l0
I

l0
IO

l0
IO

l0
10

I

l0
l0
l0
l0
10

l0
10

l0
IO

l0
l0
l0
l0
t0
l0
l0
10

t0
l0
l0
10

l0
l0Ltd.

As at March 31,2025 As at March 3 2024
No. ofShares Amount No. ofShares Amount(i) Ouoted Eouitv Instruments

Agrotech India Ltd.
AKC Steel Industries Ltd.
Alcobex Metals

Ashram Online Com Ltd.
Bhakra Industries Ltd.
BIL Industries Ltd.
B M Holding Ltd

(Formerly - Arihant Tournesol Ltd.)
Burlington Finance Ltd.
Cauvery Software Engg. System Ltd.
Celeste Intemational Ltd
Chand Vanaspati Ltd.
Coimbatore Lakshmi Inv. & Fin. Co. Ltd.
CT Cotton Yarn Ltd.
Dalta lnternational Ltd.
Dhamendra Agro Industries Ltd.
Dunlop India Ltd.
Electricals & Electronics (India) Ltd
Fidelity Finance Ltd.
Flower & Tissu India Ltd.
Garlon Polyfab Indusfies Ltd.
Global Finance Corporation Ltd.
Globe Stock Securities Ltd.
GPI Textiles Ltd
Gujarat Concost Ltd.
Himachal Futuristic Commu. Ltd.
IGGI Resorts Intemational Ltd.
Indian Seamless Finance Ltd.
Indo American Cements Ltd
Inter Globe Finance Ltd.
Jai Agro Industries Ltd.
Jauss Polymers Ltd
JMDE Packaging & Realtie

Kareems Spun Silk Ltd.
Karma Industries Ltd
Kings International Aqua-Marine Exp. Ltd.
Kiran Overseas Exports Ltd.
Kirti Seeds Biotech Ltd.
KJMC Colporate Advisors (India) Ltd
KJMC Financial Services Ltd.
Lunar Diamond lndustries Ltd.
Maruti Plastic Ltd.
Modern Cements Ltd.
MS Shoes @ast) Ltd.
Navcom Industries Ltd.
Nextgen Animation Technologies Ltd
Noel Agrotech Ltd.
Orkay Industries Ltd.
Padmini Technologies Ltd.
Pooja Granites Ltd.

Procol Electronics Ltd.

Ltd.

ies Ltd.Ltd.

Ltd.

100

500

2000

7700
I 100

400

600

236000

300

5500

89r00
I 500

100

200
I 000

5900

75000

200

900

2 100

600

29000

399

700
400000

4100

100

1200

160

12100

1739

209000

200
2510

4200

1500

37400
49985

50000

200
s300

400

100

15000

2

24000

50

136400

500

1200

I 800

1000

6

lll
3000

396.55

663.00

3 I 6080.00

I r 6.78

| 14.95

41887.43

43470.00

9.00

0.68

100

500

2000

7700

I 100

400

600

236000

300

s500
89r 00

I 500

100

200
I 000

5900

7s000

200

900

2100

600

29000

399

700
400000

4100

100

1200

t60
I2100

1739

209000

200
2510

4200

1500

37400
4998s

50000

200

5300

400

100

15000

2

24000

50

136400

500

1200

I 800

1000

6

lll
3000

462.00

1080.00

367600.00

84.54

89.04

24492.65

24540.00

696



Apex Enterprises (India) Limited
- L5l 109W81995PLC068542

Notes to linancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025
amount in hundred upto two decimals, untess otherwise stated)

Face Value As at March 3l,2OZs As at March 31,2024
share No. ofShares Amount No. ofShares Amount

Sreechem Rasins Ltd.
State Bank of India
Surya Agro Oils Ltd.
Swamima Oils Industries Ltd.
Swastik Nitro Industries Ltd
Top Telemedia Ltd.
U P. Minerals Ltd.
Uniworth International Ltd.
Vishwakarma Cement Works Ltd.
Wool Combers (I) Ltd.

(ii) Unquoted Eouitv Instruments
Amrit Sales Promotion Pvt Ltd - 'A"
Authentic Finance Plt Ltd - A
Authentic Finance Pvt Ltd - B
Decent Financial Services Pvt Ltd
Dilip Chhabria Design (Automobile)
Enso Technologies Pvt Ltd
Exim Scrips Dealers Pvt. Ltd.
Exim Scrips Services P!t. Ltd.
Flat Earth Oil & Gas Pvt Ltd
HFCL Kongsung Telecom Ltd.
HFCL Satellite Communications Ltd.
lgloo Commerce Pvt Ltd
Keventer Projects Ltd
Linear Commercial Pvt Ltd
Manimudra Vincom Plt Ltd
Platinum Edu Ltd
Pragya Vincom Prt Ltd
Radice Steels & Alloys Ltd.
Richirich Securities Pvt. Ltd.-A
Richirich Securities Pvt. Ltd.-B
Right Innuva Know-How Ltd
Santhal Multicust Prt Ltd
Speedcrafts Ltd
Teamasia Semiconductors Pvt Ltd
Technet Software Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
Vaibhav Credit & Portfolio Pvt Ltd
Westel Wireless Ltd

(iii) Mutual Fund
Axis Arbitrage Fund - Regular IDCW
Kotak Low Duration Fund

(iv) Debentures (at Cost)
Mardia Chemicals Ltd.

l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
10

l0
l0
l0
t0

l0
l0

r00

t0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
10

l0
I

l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0
l0

800

27000

200
I 700

5000

2500

500

4000
4000

1400

300000
285000

22400

44750

13000

20600

100000

108000

750000

5903400

5000

6390000

377000

l 6000

100000

695237

800000

254000

4s000

40000
25000

800

27000
200

I 700

5000

2500
500

4000

4000
1400

300000

285000

22400

44750

13000

20600

100000

108000

750000

5903400

130000

5000

6390000

377000

16000

100000

695237

800000

254000

45000

40000
25000

75000

I 70000

80700

561.36

203202.00

622118.55

10918.70

53899.90

67543.20

665199.00
1369075.50

17280.00

54762.40

20689.00

225s367J0

123.30

201.70

325.00

700000.00

713000.00

r413000.00

400000.00

720153.00
t371299.80

r 7040.00
54178.20

75000

242222 46928090
80700

2764224.10

296.40
208332.00

611366,79

1 091 6.1 0

53899.90

67456.80

132.19

216.54

348.73

55.29

55.29

I l9l
7

100

tt28
7

100

700000

713000

8000

55.29

55.29

(v)

(vi)

Ootional Fullv Convertible Debenture
Preksha Tradecom Pvt Ltd
Yuthika Trading Company Prt Ltd

67o Non-Cumulative Optionallv Convertible Prcference Share
Ltd

700000 700000.00
713000 713000.00

14r3000.00

8000 400000.00

400000.00(gus
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Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025
amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

Face Value As at March 3l,2O2S As at March 2024
share No, of Shares Amount No, 

"f 
Sh*e.

(vii) 3.67o OCR Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share
Bluetown Trading Company Pvt Ltd
Fastdeal Mercantile Company Pvt Ltd

Value of Quoted
Value of Unquoted

Total

233000.00
23 I 000.00

611715.52

5041279.99

56s2995.5r

466000
462000

466000

462000

Amount

233000.00
231000.00
464000.00

51

622443.5s
4536422.99

sr58866.54

464000.00

Grand Total ( i + ii + iii + iv +v + vi +vii ) 5652995.51

a) In fte absence of fair valuation report, the company has not carried out investments at its fair value as required by Ind AS 109 "Financial Instrument,,
following included in items at fair value through profit or loss :

b)

c)

Particulars Mar 31, 2025 Mar31,2024
Unquoted Equity Instruments

Debentures (at Cost)
2764224.70

55.29

1413000.00

400000.00
464000.00

22s9367.70

55.29

r413000.00

400000.00
464000.00

Fully Convertible Debenture

Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Share

.6% OCR Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share

In the Schedule ofQuoted Investment, the company is holding 2700 equity shares ofState Bank oflndia since 1995. on reduction in face value per sharr
from Rs.l0/- to Re.l/- per share, the quantity have been increased to 27,000. In the year 1996, the company had filed a money suit qNo.:tZO of teeO:
against State Bank of India for misplacement ot those 2700 shares.Recently on 09/06/2022 the Ld. Judge II-nd senci, 6tb.'C;ii Io*,-roltu,o
been pleased to pass a decree order directing the State Bank oflndia (defendent no.1) and Share TransfeiAgent (defendent no.2) to issue the dupli
share Cenificate in favour ofthe company alongwrth all benefits. However SIB filed an appeal before Calcutta High Court chanllenging the order
decree which is pending for disposal

Due to the unavailability of trade data, suspension of trading in stock exchange and non-availability of other information regarding the current share
uity shares at ZERO each.

Agrotech lndia Ltd.

AKC Steel lndustries [td.
Alcobex Metals
Bhakra lndustries Ltd.

BIL lndustries Ltd.

Burlington Finance Ltd.

Cauvery Software Engg. System Ltd.

Celeste lnternational Ltd.

Chand Vanaspati Ltd.

Coimbatore Lakshmi lnv. & Fin. Co. Ltd.

CT Cotton Yarn Ltd.

Dalta lnternational Ltd.

Dharnendra Agro lndustries Ltd.

Dunlop lndia Ltd.

Electricals & Electronics (lndia) Ltd
Fidelity Finance Ltd.

Flower & Tissu lndia Ltd.

Garlon Polyfab lndustries Ltd.

Global Finance Corporation [td.
Globe Stock Securities Ltd.

GPI Textiles Ltd

Gujarat Concost Ltd.

lnternational Ltd.

Finance Ltd.

Cements Ltd.

Ltd.

& Realtie

100

500

2000

1100

400
236000

300

5500

89100

1500

100

200

1000

5900

75000

200

900

2100

600

29000

399

700

4100

100

1200

12100

209000

//!-.
'q'/*/
=l .

eYI
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Kareems Spun Silk Ltd.

Karma lndustries Ltd

Kings lnternational Aqua-Marine Exp. Ltd.
Kiran Overseas Exports Ltd.

Kirti Seeds Biotech Ltd.

Lunar Diamond lndustries Ltd.

Maruti Plastic Ltd.

Modern Cements Ltd.

M5 Shoes (East) Ltd.

Navcom lndustries Ltd.

Nextgen Animation Technologies Ltd
Noel Agrotech Ltd.

Orkay lndustries Ltd.

Padmini Technologies Ltd.

Pooja Granites Ltd.

Savoy Herbals Ltd.

Secure Earth Technologies Ltd

Silverline Technologles Ltd.Ltd.

SLM-Maneklal lndustries Ltd.

Solarsons lndustries Ltd.

Surya Agro Oils Ltd.

Swarnima Oils lndustries Ltd.

Swastik Nitro lndustries Ltd.

Top Telemedia Ltd.

U.P. Minerals Ltd.

Uniworth lnternational Ltd.

Vishwakarma Cement Works Ltd.

200
2510

4200
1500

37400

200

5300
400
100

15000

2

24000

50
136400

500

1800

1000

6

111

3000

200

L700

5000
2500

500

4000

4000
1400

TL

Wool Combers (l) Ltd.

Total

As at
March 31,2025

8t.37
(l 03892.08)
(103E10.71)

As at
March 31,2024

Deferred Tax Assets
- Property, Plant & Equipment
- On Fair value Gain of investment (FVTPL)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- Property, Plant & Equipment
- On Fair value Gain of investrnent (FVTPL)

Total

82.27

61417.23

6L49950

J.JJ

333

347
3.47

Net DTA/(L) (103814.r8)

As at
March 31,2025

61496.17

As at
March 31,2024

Other Non-Current Assets

Security Deposit 7632.00
7632.00

7632.00
Total

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31.2024

Trade Receivables
(a) Considered Good-Unsecured

Less : Impairment loss allowances

(b) Considered Doubtfu l-Unsecured

480.00

480.00

for Allowance

TOTAL (a + b) 480.00

:ivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
from any Firm or Private Company in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

loans
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8 Cash and Cash Equivalents (As certified by the management)
Balances with Banks

In Current Accounts

Cheques in hand

Cash on Hand

Total

Cash Balances (other than cash & cash equivalents)
Cash in hand (seized by I.T.Department.)

11s0.00 1r50.00

The Income Tax department carried out search & seizure in the premises of the company on2llo8l2017 and sized cash of {13,40,000/- which
cash oft1,15,000/- which were in Company's hand on the said date.

The said cash have been added to the total income ofMr. P L.Maloo for A Y. 2018-19 based on allegation that the cash found was undisclosed cash
Mr. P.L.Maloo. The mafter is still pending before CIT(A) and on disposal, the same will be received by the Company.

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

Loans and Advances
Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

- to Body corporates

- to others

(Including interest accrued of INR I,13,65,100, P/Y INR 90,42,71l)
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)

- to Body corporates

- to others

Less : Allowance for doubtful loans

Advances
(Unsecured, considered good)

- to others

(Unsecured, considered doubtfi:l)
- to others

Less : Allowance for doubtful loans

Advance to Staff against Salary
Prepaid Expenses

497203.58Total

Neither any Loans and Advances are due from directors or other officers ofthe Company either severally orjointly with any other person nor any
and advances are due from firm or Private Company in which any director is a partner, a director, or a member. [Receivable from Related party
(P/y - Nil)l

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance lncome Tax (Net ofProvision)
Balances with Statutorv Authorities

Income Tax Refundable

As at
March 31,2025

t939.23

523.07

2462.30

As at
March 31,2025

I 150.00

519547.47

519547.47

519547.47

55.45

180650.40

I 80705.85

1806s0.40

55.45

1715.00

74.93

521392.85

4004.20

30390.76

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31,2024

l150.00

496323.58

496323.s8

180650.40

180650.40

180650.40

693422

880.00

6934.t3

4004.20

30390'76Tax Paid

Total 41329.18 41329.09

496323.58
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As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024l2 Other Current Assets

Advance to Staff against Expenses 95.00 95.00

95"00Total

As at As at
March 31,2024March 31, 2025

13 Share Capital
a) Authorised:

94,00,000 Equity Shares ofRs.l0/- each

b) Issued. Subscribed and fullv paid-up Shares:
88,20,400 Equity Shares ofRs. l0/- each fully paid up

c) Equity Share Capital

1) Current Reporting period

940000.00 940000.00
940000.00Total

Total
882040.00
ss2040"00

882040.00

2) Previous Reporting peilod

d) Details ofshareholders holding more than 57o shares along with number ofshares held:

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

Name of Shareholders No. ofshares Yo No. ofshares yo
Amrit Sales Promotion Pvt Ltd
Authentic Finance Pvt Ltd
Burlington Finance Ltd
Kalyan Vyapaar Prt Ltd
Shankar Sales promotion Plt Ltd
Vaibhav Credit & Portfolio Pvt Ltd
Vinsan Brothers Pr.t Ltd
Yashodham Merchants Pvt Ltd

e) Share held by promoters at the end of the year

463175

466524

583450

t745162
548524
886733

6065 l 5

6405 I 8

5.25

5.29

6,61

19.79

6.22

10.05

6.88

7.26

1933t62 21.92

548524 6.22

4s55 l 8 5. l6

As at March 3L,2025

Balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting

period
(as at March 31-,20241

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prlor

period errors

Reastated balance at the
beginning of the current

reDortinP oeriod

Changes in Equity
Share Capital during

the current year

Balance at the end of
the current reportlng

period
(as at March 31,20251

882010.00 882040.00 882(X0.00

Balance at the
beginnlng of the
current reporting

period
(as at March 3L,20231

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior

Deriod errors

Reastated balance at the
beginning of the current

reportine perlod

Changes in Equity
Share Capital during

the current vear

Balance at the end of
the current reporting

period
(as at March 3L,20241

882@O.m 882040.00 882sO.00

Amrit Sales Promotion Pvt Ltd

Authentic Finance Pvt Ltd

Burlington Finance Ltd

Kalyan Vyapaar Pvt Ltd

463t75
466524

583450

t74sL62
548524

886733

505515

640518

4.85

5.29

4.33

-2.L3

10.05

2.46

2.ro

,Q
*
-l--l
u"



As at March 2024

Promoter Name

Opening

Share

Change

during the
year Closing % of total shares

% of change

during the vear
Kalyan Vyapaar Pvt Ltd

Shankar Sales promotion Pvt Ltd

Yashodham Merchants Pw Ltd

Vinsan Brothers PW Ltd

Burlington Finance Ltd

Amrit Sales Promotion PW Ltd

1933162

548524
455518

389515

201450

35175

1933162

548524
455518

389515

2014s0

35175

2L.92

6.22

5.15

4.42
2.28

0.39

Enterprises (India)
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to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025
amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

f) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding is set out below:

As at
March 31,2025
No. ofShares

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the period

Outstanding at the end ofthe period

g) Terms/rights attached to each class ofshares
Equity Shares:

Thecompanyhasonlyoneclassofequityshareshavingaparvalueof{10/-each Eachholderofequityshareisentitledtoonevotepershares.The
company has not alloted any fully paid-up equity share by way of conversion, Bonus or rights nor has bought back any equity shares during the year.

The holders ofthe equity shares ofthe company will be entitled to receive remaining assets ofthe company, after distribution ofall preferential amounts
in the event of liquidation of the company. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.remaining assets ofthe company, after distribution ofall preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number ofequity shares held by the shareholders.

As atAs at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

14 OTHER EQUITY
A. Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Add : Profit /(Loss) during the year

B. Other comprehensive Income

Opening Balance

Change in FV during the year

Total
Refer Statement of Changes in Equify for movement in balances of Reserves.

(28983685.61) (29303489. l l

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

15 Borrowings
Unsecured

(i) Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD)

Total 24175860.00

15,1 Terms:

{241758.60(PY.241758.60)OptionallyFullyConvertibleDebentures(OFCD)oftl00/-eachfullypaid-up,redeemableatparattheendof 8

(extended tkice for a further period of 5 year) from the date of allotment or convertible at the option of the holder into Equity Shares at par (10 Equi
Share of ( I 0/- each) after one year from the date of allotment. lnterest @ 0%o shall be paid on OFCD during first 2 years and thereafter @12% p.a.

ofthe conversion option from the date ofsurrender ofthe option.)
:0lll0/2003 & Date of Maturity (After further extended period) : 30109/2026

8820400
8820400

(2930348e.r l)
3 19803.50

24175860.00

As at
March 31,2024
No. ofShares

8820400
8820400

24175860.00
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As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

16 Long term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefit - Gratuity

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

- Loans fiom Bodies Corporate

- Including interest accrued of INR 15,54,280, P/Y INR 23,74,011

- Interest rate on loans repayble on demand varies from 6.570 - lVo p.a.

Other Financial Liabilities
- Trade / Security deposits received

- Liability for expenses

3s00. l 0 3063.81
Total 3500.f0 1

As at
March 31,2025

As at
Nlarch3l,2024

17

20s242.80 t71440.11
t7t440.ttTotal

Total

60.00

415.80
475.80

60.00

412.43

472.43

As at
March 31,2024

2113.49

9839308.38

9841421.87

As at
March 31,2025

18 Other Current Liabilities
Payable against purchase of shares

Statutory Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Temporary Book overdraft from schedule bank

t277.82
9839308.38

Total

Other liabilities payable to IWs Authentic Finance Pvt Ltd represents amount pertaining to the scheme of amalgamation which was approved by
Hon'ble Calcutta High Court Order dated 1710812005 w.e.f 01104/2004. The Company is making all effort to make the repayment of liability.

For the
year ended

For the
year ended

March 31. 2025 March 31,2024
t9 Other Income

Interest

Dividend lncome

- on Shares

- on Mutual Fund

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Gain on Sale of Investment

Computer Accounting Fees

Rent

Telephone Charges

Electricity Charges

28412.75

803. I 3

7.04

2.40

120.00

1980.00

234.00

180.00

33601 .61

802. I 3

5.50

280492.30

120.00

1980.00

204.00

180.00

3r7385.54Total 3l

For the
year ended

For the
year ended

March 31,2025 March 31.2024
20 Gain(Loss) on Investment due to change of FMV

Unrealised Gair/(Loss) 494121.93

Total 21.93

(651



Apex Enterprises (India)
rN - Lsl 109W81995PLC068542

to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 3l,2O2S
amount in hundred upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated)

For the
year ended

For the
year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 202421 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and Bonus

Gratuity

Staff Welfare

10542.42

436.29

202.63

I 1181.34

9t96.tt
642.81

206.39
Total I

For the
year ended

For the
year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Finance costs

lnterest Expenses

Interet to Others

lnterest to Income Tax

12050.59

0.10

t2050.69

20361.02

1324.84

661.45
Tota! I

For the
year ended

For the
year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,202423 Other expenses

Rent

Telephone Expenses

Electricity Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Demate Charges

Professional Charges

De-Listing Fees to Calcutta Stock Exchange
Director Fees

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors Remuneration:

Statutory Audit Fees

Audit Fees in Other Capacity

3702.s8
144.18

1995.80

1593.62

19.48

2725.00

3650.00

600.00

2637.40

147.50

106.20

17321,76

3s26.27

t45.99
1922.40

1241.49

29.54

1327.00

480.00

2865.68

147.50

Total 116E5.87

For the
year ended

March 31,2025

For the
year ended

24 Earnings / (loss) per equity share
(II) Basic

a. Profit after tax
b. (i) Number ofEquity Shares at the beginning of the year

(ii) Number ofEquity Shares at the end ofthe year
(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares

outstanding during the year

(iv) Face Value of each Equity Share (in INR)
c. Basic Earning per Share [a / (b(iii)] (in INR)

(II) Diluted
a. Dilutive potential Equity Shares

b. Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for
computing Dilutive eaming per Share

c. Diluted Eaming / (Loss) per Share [same as (I)(c) abovel (in INR)

March 31,2024

3 I 9803.50

8820400

8820400

8820400

l0
3.63

8820400

Q07227.
8820400

8820400

8820400

l0
(3.48)

8820400

(3.48)

,r{^

rZ\
\za
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25 Financial Instruments disclosure

(B) Fair Values

Class wise fair value of the financial instruments:

Particulars
As at

31st March,2025
As at

3lst March,2024

Non Current lnvestments, other than investment in
;ubsidiary and joint venture (quoted)

Non Current Investments, other than investment in

rubsidiary and joint venture (unquoted)

611715.52

5041279.99

622443.55

453642299

(C) Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial assets and liabilities. The different levels have
been defined below:

- Level l: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assots or liabilities
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

financial assets measured at amortised cost

at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial Assets measured at Fair Vaiue

24175860.00

472.43

24176332.43

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

financial liabilities measured at Fair Value

wa
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Fair value measurement

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2024:
A. Financial assets:

Assets measured at fair value:
Non Current Investments, other than investment ln
subsidiary and joint venture (quoted) 3lst March 2025 611715.52

Non Current Investments, other than investment ln
subsidiary and joint venture (unquoted) 3lst March 2025 50 4l27g.gg
B. Financial Iiabilities:

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy for assets as et 3lst March 202J:

A. Financial assets:

Assets measured at fair value:
Non Current Invesfinents, other than investment in
subsidiary andjoint venture (quoted) 3lst March 2024 622443.55
Non Current Investments, other than investment in
subsidiary andjoint venture 3lst March 2024 4536422.99

B. Financial liabilities:

Fair Value Technique
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
liability in an orderly transaction between panicipants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to
the fair values:

(a) The fair value ofcash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, current financial liabilities and bonowings approximate I
carrying amount largely due to the short-term nafure ofthese instruments. The board considers that the carrying amounts offinancial assets
financial liabilities recognised at cost/amonised costs in the financial statements approximates their fair values.

@) Investments in quoted equity shares are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.

(c) Fair Value for valuation ofunquoted equity instruments is arrived based on Break up value by the management.

Date of
Particulars valuation
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26 Financial Risk Management objectives and policies
abilities in domestic currency, capital creditors and trade and other payables. The main
is to fin operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade andvalents, ir value and deposits, that derive directly from its operations.

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of theserisks The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are s-ummarised below.

A. Market risk
Market risk means that the fair value of future cash flows of a furancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The goal
of market risk management is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits. Markei risk comprises
two types ofrisk: 'Foreign currency risk', 'Interest rate risk', and 'Price risk on traded goods,.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The company undertakes no hansactions denominated primarily in USD and consequently exposed to exchange rate fluctuations.

The Company has no exposure to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because ofthe changes in
foreign exchange rates

(b) Interest rate risk
The Company has no exposwe to interest rate risk by adjusting of borrowing structure ratio befureen borrowings at fixed interest rates. The
company monitors interest rate risks regularly in order to avoid exposure to interest rate risk on borrowings at variable interest rate.

B. Credit risks
credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and others. In addition, credit risk arises from financial
guarantees.

The Company implements a credit risk management policy under which the company only transacts business with counterparties that have a
certain level of credit worthiness based on internal assessment of the parties, financial condition, historical experience, and other factors. The
Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics ofeach customer. The Company has established a credit
policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables.
The main components of this allowance aro a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss
component that are expected to occur. The collective loss allowance is determined based on nistoricat data of payment statistics for similar
financial assets. Debt securities are analyzed individually, and an expected loss shall be directly deducted from debt securities.

(i) Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk as of 3l
March2025,3l March 2024 are as follows:

Particulars As at
31st March,2025

As at
31st March,2024

I rade recervables (net)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Non-Current and Current Loans

2462.30

521392.85
$si,qs

497203.58

(ii) Impairment losses on Iinancial assets
Refer the table below for reconciliation of loss allowance in ofTrade Receivables:

allowance at the beginning ofthe year

Allowance provided during the year

Allowance reversed during the year

at the end of the

/u'
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The oftrade accounts and notes receivable as of 3 I March 2025 and 3as vlarch2024 are as follows:

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March,2024

Within Credit Period
I to 90 days past due

9l to 180 days past due

More than 180 days past due

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made theduring reporting period.

C. Liquidity Risk
The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirement at all times. The need of
the funds of the company are being met by internal accrual and borrowings. The short and medium term requirements are met through the
committed lines of credit.

The table provides undiscounted cash flow towards non-derivative financial liability and net settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
mafurities based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to contractual maturity date

Particulars 0 - 180 davs l8l - 365 davs
Payable in more

than I year Total
As at 3lst March 2025

Non Current borrowings
Current borrowings
Trade Payables

Other hnancial liabilities

I 80625.55

475.80

246t7.25
24t75860.00 24175860.00

205242.80

475.80
18r10rJ5 24617.25 24r75860.00 2438r578.60

Particulars 0 - 180 days 181 - 365 davs
Payable in more

than I year Total
As at 3lst March2024
Non Current borrowings
Current borrowings
Irade Payables

Other financial liabilities

53465.16

472.43

1t7974.95
24t75860.00 24t 7s860.00

171440 11

472.43
53937.59 117974.95 24175860.00 24347772.54

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Risk management
The fundamental goal ofcapital management are to: - safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that tley can continue to provide
retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and - maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofcapital.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent
management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and intemational financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business

For the purpose ofcompany's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The company manages its capital
structure in light ofchanges in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements ofthe financial covenants.

The Company manages its capital on the basis ofnet debt to equity ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt are long-term and
short-term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. The Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

27

A.
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28 Related Party Disclosure persuant to Ind AS 24
28.1 Related Parties Name of the Related parties
l.Key Management Personel Rabi Paul (Director)

Subrata Pal (Director)
Birendra Pandey (Director)

Priyanka poddar (Woman Director)

Additional related parties as per Companies Act,20l3 with whom transaction has taken place during the year
Kev Management Personnel Relationship
Neelam Khator il,npuny Secretary

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 3l March, 2025 and balances outstanding as at 3l March, 2025:
28.2 Transactions during the year

Particulars
Key Management Personel

Firm in which comoany is a oartner.

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Directors'Fees
Subrata Pal

Rabi Paul

Birendra Pandey

Priyanka Poddar

Ujjal Chakraborty

Managerial Remuneration
Neelam Khator

180.00

r 80.00

180.00

60.00

1800.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

30.00

1800.00

28.3 Disclosure in respect of transactions in excess of 107o ofthe total related tronsactions of the same
Particulars Transaction with Entities in which

KMP/Relatives of KMP can exercise
lignificant influence

Balances

2024-25 2023-24 2024-2s 2023-24
Directors' Fees

Subrata Pal

Rabi Paul

Birendra Pandey

Priyanka Poddar

180.00

180.00

180.00

60.00

1s0.00

150.00

1s0.00

The table summerises the of the

Particulars
As at

3lst March 2025
As at

31st March 2024
Total borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net Debt

Equity

Total Capital (Equify + Net Debt)

Net Debt to Equity ratio

24175860 00

2462.30
24173397.70

(2810164s.61)

(3928247.9r)

24r 75860.00

1586.49

24174273.51

(2842t449.11)

(424717s.60)

w9
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29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

lncome tax matters Appeals by the Company 20499.00 20499.00

32

(i) The Company is ofthe opinion that the above demands are not tenable and expects to succeed in its appeals/defense.

(ii) Details of demand as raised by the lncome tax department are as follows:

s. nb. lSme of Statute ltture of
Duea

Assessment
Yea r

Amount Under section Forum wirere pendlng

1 Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 2012-73 20499.00 t47 NFAC, Delhi

Against the above demand of Rs.20,49,900/- for A.Y. 2012-13, the Income Tax departrnent have adjusted the companies I.T.Refund of
Rs.20,49,9001 including interest u/s 220(2) of I.T.Act.

(b) Capital and other commitments:
The Company doesn't have any Capital and other Commitments which need to be disclosed to the extent which has not been provided for.

30 MSME DISCTOSURE

The Company has no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises covered under the [MSMED Act, 2006] as at 3lst March2025 and 3lst March2024.
This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development Act, 2006 and has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identifed on the basis ofinformation available with the Company.

31 As the Company's business activity falls within and is organised as a single business segment. The disclosure requirment of AS-17 on "segment
Reporting" is not applicable.

Disclosure in ofloans & advances as per Clause 32 of

Particulars Closing Maximum Balance
i) Loans and advances in the nature ofLoans to subsidiaries

Nil NA

ii) Loans and advances in the nature ofloans to associates
Nil NA

iii) Loans and advances in the nature ofloans where there is

a) No repayment schedule ofrepayment Beyond 7 years

b) No interest or interest below section 186 of the Companies Act,20l3

Nil NA

Nil Nil

v) Loans and advances in the nature ofloans offirms / companies in

which directors are interested Nil N.A

v) Investment by loanee in the shares ofparent company and subsidiary
company when the company has made a loan or advance in the nature ofloan Nil N.A

ln the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets and non cunent investments, have a realisable value in the ordinary course of
business which is not different from the amount at which it is stated.

Balances ofsome ofthe sundry debtors, creditors, loans and advances are subject to confirmations from the respective parties and consequential
adjustments arising from reconciliation, ifany is not ascertainable.

35 OFCD Shown under the head "Long Term Borrowings" is due to amalgamation of various companies which had
private placement basis.

33

34

issued the said OFCD's on

'J6 The previous year figures are reclassified where considered necessary to conform to this year's classification.



Enterprises (India) Limited
crN - L5l 109W81995PLC068542
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2025

amount in hundred upto two decimats, unless otherwise stated)

37 Ratio and its

Ratio Numerator Denominator Year ended
March 31.2025

Period ended
March 31.2024 7o Variance

a) Current Ratio (in times)
Iotal current
assets

Total current
liabilities 0.06 005 4.19

b) Debt-Equity ratio (in times)
Debt consist of
borrowing Iotal equity (0.86) (0.85 l14

;) Debt sewice coverage ratio
(in times)

Earning for debt
servtce

Debt service 41.27 (ls.e3) (3se.04)

d) Return on equity ratio (in 7o)
Net Profit after
Tax

A,verage total
:quity (0.01 0.01 (204.12)

e) Inventory tumover ratio
(in times)

Cost of goods sold
cr sales

Average Inventory

f) Trade receivables fumover ratio
(in times) Net credit sales

Average accounts
receivables

g) Trade payables turnover ratio
(in times)

Net credit
purchases

Average accounts
payable

h) Net capital turnover ratio
(in times)

Revenue from
operations

Average Working
capital

) Net profit ratio (in %) Net Profit after
Tax

Revenue from
operations

) Return on capital employed
(no/o)

profit before tax
and finance costs

Capital employed (0. r 3) 008 (250.8s)

k) Retum on Investments (in oZ)
Income generated

from invested

funds

Average invested
funds 0.09 0.00 62,129.60

38

39

Note 1- Variance in Debt service coverage ratio is due to increase in fair market value oflnvestments during the
year.

Note 2- Variance in Return on equity ratio is due to increase in Fair market value in Investments during the year.
Note 3- Variance in Return on capital employed ratio is due to increase in Fair market value in Investments during the

year.
Note 4- Variance in Return on lnvestments ratio is due to increase in Fair market vatue in Investments during the year

Going Concern
The Net Worth of the Company is negative due to losses and the company's current liabilities exceeds its current assets as at 3l/03/2025.
However having regard to the financial support from management, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis and that
no adjustment are required to the carrying value of assets and liabilities. Further, the management is tryingfor re-structuring and./or merger.

The company was originally registered as NBFC. Thereafter, due to negative Net Worth it had received several reminders from Reserve Bank of
India to achieve Net own Fund at the required level. But due to losses, it could not attain the positive Net Own Fund at the required level. As
such the NBFC Certificate had been surrendered in the year 2006. As on date ofsurrender the company was having loans/Advances, Investment
in Shares and Securities for huge amount. In-spite of best efforts it could not get the prospective buyer for the un-quoted securities. Due tonegative fund by infusion offresh capital nor could take a steps for diverson business. However, the management
is in the for diversification and is hopeful for the positive outcome in the near future. Further, the management is
trying fo

The Company is listed in the Calcutta Stock Exchange. Since, Calcutta Stock Exchange was not operating, During the year The Calcutta Stock
exchange is in operative mode and Company have been complied the all required formalities as prescribld by re'gulation 33 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. However the company has made application with
the Calcutta Stock Exchange for delisting ofequity shares of the company for which requisite fees have been paid and the same is under process.

(D Wilful Defaulter

- ThPCompanyhasnotbeendeclaredasawilfuldefaulterbyanybankorfinancialinstitutionorotherlendersasatMarch 
31,2025.

40
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Relationship with Struck off Companies
The{ompany has no transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of companies Act,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
There are no charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Roc beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with companies (Restriction onnumber oflayers) Rules, 2017.

(v) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
During the year no Scheme of Arrangements have been approved by the competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the companiesAct' 2013, thus the disclosure ofsuch Scheme ofArrangements is not applicabie for the company.

(vi) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium
A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) toany other persons or entities, including foreign entities(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that theIntermediary shall
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe company(Ultimate Benefi ciaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The company has not received any lirnd from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding party) with the understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe FundingParty (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) Crypto currency and Virtuat Currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual Currency during the financial year.

(viii) Details o, Benami property Hetd
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the prohibition ofBenami property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder as at March 31,2025.

(ix) Undisclosedlncome
There are no transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yearin the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions ofthe Income Tax Act, l96l)

As per our Report attached of even date

For D.K.Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 304138E
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